Minutes
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
Wednesday, January 13, 2010, 7:00 PM

MEMBERS: Chair Al Hartkopf, Vice Chair Tommy Sikes, Carlarisford, Dave Remington,

ABSENT:

STAFF:

PUBLIC:

ITEM #1:

ITEM #2:

MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #3:

MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #4:

and Eddie Sain.
Bradley Curelop, absence excused.
Senior Planner Tom King and Town Attorney Bob Hiorn

Jeff Swicegood, Subal Das, Jessica Carmichael,rk@armichael, Michael Neal,
Hal House, Albert Hill, Deborah Malinowski, JesskKaight, Lisa Kubish, Frank
Cohen, Richard Holcomb, Elena Peace, George Hoftaty Parrott and Chad
Abbott.

Mr. King swore in those who came forward indicgtandesire to speak.

Call meeting to order and confirm the presnce of a quorum.
Chair Al Hartkopf called the meeting to order a@@:p.m. and confirmed the
presence of a quorum.

Consideration of additions to the agenda.
Mr. King stated that a Closed Session item needebetadded as Item 7A to
discuss the Nannie Richmond and Webb Grove perittiigation.

Mr. Sikes moved to amend the Agenda to add a Closed Seasidtem 7A to
discuss pending litigationMr. Remington seconded.
Unanimous.

Approval of the December 9, 2009 minutes.

Mr. Sain moved to adopt the minutes of the December 9, 20@@ting as
submitted. Mr. Sikes seconded.
Unanimous.

Continued Item - Case #BA-13-2009 - Special Exception Permit regst from

Ellen L. Steinberg to allow a wooden deck with outdor shower to be
constructed on the rear of an existing house. Thergposed deck will continue
with the line of the house that currently encroache 12 feet into the allowed
reduced 15-foot south side yard setback. The proped deck will be no closer
than 3.0 feet from the south side property line, ore constructed. The
property is located at 313 North Hassel Street (Omge County Tax Map
Reference #4.18.G.8) and is zoned R-20 (Medium Imigity Residential)/HD

(Historic District) Overlay.



MOTION:

VOTE:

MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #5:

Mr. King stated that Ms. Steinberg was not presafthough she had been
notified twice by mail as well as by phone yestgrdad she had responded via
email to the Board’s questions. He said that tlnmuestion was in regards to
drainage, and Ms. Steinberg had responded thatahieactor had indicated that
the drainage for the shower would be plumbed vithhouse. Mr. King said Ms.
Steinberg had indicated in her email that, if theveer caused concern, then it
could be omitted from of her plans. He said that Bteinberg would be required
to obtain plumbing and building permits, so any kvarould be inspected for
compliance with the Building Code. Mr. King notédat he believed Ms.
Steinberg was not able to be present due to amvodkischedule.

Mr. Remington said he believed the drainage for shewer was the only
outstanding issue, and believed the Board couldenmakiecision based on the
information Mr. King had provided.

Mr. Sikes moved to close the hearing on Case #BA-13-2009e€iSpException
Permit request from Ellen L. Steinberylr. Remington seconded.
Unanimous.

Discussion:

Mr. Sain suggested that a condition be placed gnoapl regarding the drainage.
Mr. King stated that the permitting required woudgult in various inspections,
and the condition he had included was that an ds4$wrvey be submitted to
verify compliance with the submitted plan.

Mr. Sikes moved to approve Case #BA-13-2009 — Special ExzepBermit
request from Ellen L. Steinberg with the conditidmt an as-built survey,
prepared by a professional land surveyor, shovwhagthe deck complies with the
terms of the Ordinance and Special Exception Peshall be submitted to the
Zoning Officer prior to the issuance of a Certiteaf Occupancy for the project.
Mr. Sain seconded.

Unanimous.

Case #BA-01-2010 - Conditional Use-2 Permirequest from Summit
Consulting c/o Chad Abbott on behalf of MeadowlandsAssociates for the
construction of 4 buildings totaling 59,500 squaréeet in gross floor area for
use as flexible office, warehouse and storage spades3 off-street parking
spaces are to be provided. The property is locateat the end of Executive
Court (Orange County Tax Map Reference #4.40.A.11and is zoned HIC
(High Intensity Commercial).

Mr. Hartkopf opened the public hearing. Mr. Kingted that the purpose of the
Conditional Use Permit was to allow for the constilen of 4 buildings totaling
59,500 square feet in gross floor area for asdlexible office, warehouse and
storage space. He said this project would beadligon Business Center II, and
133 off-street parking spaces were being propoddd. King said the property
was zoned High Intensity Commercial, and was jusr & acres in area. It is

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #6 #5:

located at the end of Executive Court. He saidh® east of the site was a
residential subdivision and to the northwest anglsavere commercial/industrial
uses.

Mr. King stated that staff found the plans to begeneral compliance with the
Ordinance; however, staff had identified severats@nding questions that
needed to be answered. He said first, there wadeao indication provided as to
what landscaping would be used for screening atfiiédng in the Type D land
use buffer required along the east side of thegatgp Mr. King said secondly,
no employment information was provided so calcaofatihe required off-street
parking was difficult to do, adding that the minimparking requirements for
office use were one space per employee, plus oaeesper 300 square feet of
gross floor area. Mr. King said for storage andeliausing it was one space per
employee and two customer spaces. He said byalgslations this application
would require 103 spaces although that provided lthee minimum; the
application was proposing 133 spaces.

Mr. King said he believed the applicant may be dblsupply answers to those
guestions, but Mr. Abbott had not yet arrived. Hggested they leave the hearing
open and continue with the next item. There washbjection from the Board.

Mr. Sikes moved to keep the public hearing open on Case #BRdlO -
Conditional Use-2 Permit request from Summit Coinsglc/o Chad Abbott on
behalf of Meadowlands Associates, to allow the iappt time to arrive at the
meeting; and, to renumber this item to Item 6 agwbmber Item 6 as Item 5.
Mr. Sain seconded.

Unanimous.

Case #BA-02-2010 — Conditional Use-2 Permitdm Krishna Temple of NC,
Inc. c/o Albert Hill for the construction of a 19,772 square foot temple with
an associated 124 off-street parking spaces. Theqperty is located on the
east side of Dimmocks Mill Road approximately 1,60@eet south of the Ben
Johnston Road/Dimmocks Mill Road intersection (Orage County Tax Map
Reference #4.38.B.4A) and is zoned AR (Agricultur&Residential).

Mr. Hartkopf opened the public hearing. Mr. Kingted that the property was
located on the east side of Dimmocks Mill Road appnately 1,600 feet south
of the Ben Johnston Road/Dimmocks Mill Road intetise. He said the
applicant was requesting a Conditional Use Peretlow for the construction of
a 19,772 square foot temple with an associatedffZlreet parking spaces. Mr.
King said the site was a little more than 6% aces was zoned
Agricultural/Residential, with surrounding land ses& farming and single-family
residential.

Mr. King said at the time that the staff report waspared the only outstanding
issue was that no stormwater plan approval had besgived. He said that had
been granted today by Orange County Erosion Coatrdlhad been provided to

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



the Board via an email with revised calculationstfee basins, as well as a map
indicating the location of the basins. Mr. Kingdsa should be made known that
when the application came through in 2007 the si@tar regulations were not
as stringent as they were now, but the project regsired to meet the Neuse
River rules at this time.

Mr. Hartkopf said he believed the rather long snkctangle on the map was
the bio-retention area and there would be plantingbat area for the purpose of
filtering out the organics. Mr. King replied he sveeferring to the wastewater
system, and the rectangle on the map showed thewtder system. He said that
originally the stormwater was proposed to be hahaléh grass swales, but the
issue was that that would not allow the applicaneet the Neuse River rules in
regards to handling suspended solids. Mr. King gaiorder to meet the rules,
bio-retention basins had been added.

Mr. Hartkopf asked how that interacted with a staat in the agenda materials
about a stream feature that was no longer preddnt.King responded that was
in reference to the SWID, or surface water idecifion determination. He said
when this project had originally gone through gitan review a neighboring

property owner had indicated there may be a strearthe property at the far
southern end. Mr. King said he had advised thdiapp that that may still be an

issue and they were advised to have that investigay Orange County Erosion
Control. He said that investigation indicated ttiegre was no water feature on
the site, or it was not a water feature that woalglire a buffer.

Mr. Hartkopf said another prior issue had been MMZENR (North Carolina
Department of Environment and Natural Resourcepprtewas the affluent
management, but believed that issue was now closédat the applicant had
received the wastewater system approval from NCDEMAsion of Water

Quality.

Mr. Hartkopf said the absence of seats in the Temgls another issue. Mr. King
said that was an issue the applicant had raist#teinnarrative, in that since there
were no seats how they would apply the off-streekipg requirements which
was one space for every four seats, and that waergéy interpreted to be in the
main sanctuary for churches. He said the applicadtdetermined the number by
looking at the State Building Code requirement®ioé person per 7 square feet
for occupancy and equated that into persons’ seate Temple hall. Mr. King
said the Temple hall was 3,260 square feet in es@ah was calculated to an
occupancy of 466, so one space for every four seatdd be 116 parking spaces.
He said the applicant was proposing 124. Mr. Haotlsaid he found that to be
reasonable.

Mr. King swore in Michael Neal. Mr. Neal, the enger for the project, said that
one of the issues had been the stormwater, butra¥ikg had noted that had
been granted approval today. He noted that therdtémtion basins would

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



include vegetation that would appear to be smafdgyas to help with the
impurities in the water. Mr. Neal said they alsdlIprovided a letter from Orange
County Erosion Control that addressed the issuth@fstream, indicating that
there was no water feature on the site that waddire a buffer.

Mr. Remington asked for a brief explanation of tieure of the bio-retention
basins. Mr. Neal stated that bio-retention basinerew stormwater best
management practices with the intent to collectrtivoff generated by the first
inch of rainfall which was directed and carriedoithe bio-retention basin. He
said to create a bio-retention basin you removedstil to a depth of between 2
feet and 4 feet, and replaced that soil with a iipamixture of soils that would
allow the water to percolate into it at a relatwést rate. Mr. Neal said at the
top of the basin there would be mulch and otheenss that were conducive to
growing plants, and shrubs, trees, and other graaver that carried that first
flush of polluted runoff that was then directecbitihat basin. He said any water
beyond that was not considered to be polluted apadsed it by going over the
berm. Mr. Neal said the polluted runoff that waken into the basin was
degraded over time by the soil and various plastithgough a biological process.

Mr. Sikes said then what would be seen was a plastmken area. Mr. Neal

replied yes, that generally there would be a bewaorad it no more than one foot
high, then there would be flat table-top area. sHiel generally such basins could
be any shape but would need to have a width ok&0tb 15 feet and be planted
with a specific variety of plants along with groucalver.

Mr. Remington said the memo from Orange County i&ro€ontrol said that the

project proposed to make an in-lieu payment toevffemaining nitrogen loading

which was allowed under current regulations. Hesdsvhat that payment would
actually be used for. Mr. Neal said it went intdState fund that was used to
restore streams and wetlands and other streamatitigprojects.

Town Attorney Bob Hornik stated that supposedlysthdunds were segregated
by districts so that funds paid in a particulartritis were used within that same
district. Mr. King said he believed it would alge within the same drainage
watershed.

Mr. King swore in Richard Holcomb. Mr. Holcomb w&d he was the owner of
Coon Rock Farm which bordered that property onettsides and was between
that property and the Eno River. He said his favas a 45-acre sustainable,
natural organic produce and animal farm, and saitv&s opposed to the project
for many reasons. Mr. Holcomb said one was th&esoating it was a 6% acre
site and the proposal was to build a very largecsire that would disturb about
75% of the site. He said they were using a spyatem rather than the normal
septic system, as well as 124 parking spaces whésha fairly large amount of

impervious area that would be dumping oil, gasolar@ifreeze, and any number
of toxic substances onto the soil. Mr. Holcomldsidiat would all be draining

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



downhill, and he was downhill, and everyone who att&Veaver Street Market
would be downhill because that was where his preduas sold as well as other
organic markets in the area. He said it boggledntind that it was possible to
put an open tank of human waste effluent 30 toe4® &way from organic lettuce.

Mr. Holcomb said several years ago in Californi@réhhad been an e coli
outbreak in organic spinach which had been tracett o effluent from a factory
cow farm where sick cows had e coli in their gutickhcontaminated the water,
the water ran downhill and contaminated the spinpebple ate the spinach, and
many got sick and some died. He said he was rggesting that the Krishna’'s
were going to kill anyone, but was saying that hg\an open spray septic system
literally just feet away from organic produce wascamprehensible. Mr.
Holcomb said in addition, the project was oversifdthe small amount of area
it had, that the traffic burden on that resideffaaiming area would be greatly
increased, and believed it would decrease the propmlues of all the land
around it. He said this would very much be a conemaéstructure, and believed
that some of the structures associated with theplemid not match that very
well with a typical exclusion that would be availmlbor a church due to the
amphitheaters and other open entertainment-typasangarticularly since he
believed it was the Krishna’s intent to allow othaganizations to use those
areas. Mr. Holcomb said he did not believe that \ea appropriate use of
facilities in what was a residential area.

Ms. Lunsford asked Mr. Holcomb to point out his gedy on the map, which he
did. He said he had 10 acres of sustainable, alftigrown vegetables with the
remainder in pasture and trees.

Mr. Sikes asked if his property also bordered Oeechee Mountain. Mr.
Holcomb responded yes, noting that two sides beri#re river and the other the
Occoneechee State Park. He said even if propasectention basins worked
they would not be 100%, noting that man-made systeften failed, and anything
that did not work would flow over onto his vege&blvhich would be consumed
by citizens in Hillsborough. Mr. Holcomb said whaas left would flow over
into the Eno River and into the Town’s drinking et He stated it just seemed
like a really bad idea to have the sewer sprayed open ground.

Mr. Hartkopf asked how DENR approved of such a setigposal area and its
effect on produce. Mr. Holcomb said he did notwninat DENR was made
aware of his farm and the close proximity of theduce. He said one of the
disadvantages the homeowners had was that thegadittave the resources to
hire consultants and stormwater engineers to refeg a large organization like
the Temple was able to afford. Mr. Holcomb sagl gwint was more of a logical
one, in that did you really want stormwater and exewater just a few feet from
lettuce and spinach you might very well be eathegriext day.

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



Mr. Remington said then the portion of his farm vehbe grew the produce was
immediately downstream from the bio-retention baside said his vegetables
were growing 10 feet from the property line.

Mr. Sikes said the narrative did say that the tetdgy used standard septic tanks
to remove waste solids, and plant beds to remollataots from the water. He
asked Mr. Neal were they then using a combinatysitesn. Mr. Neal pointed out
that where the stormwater was located, there wagegetation beds of any sort
downstream from where the stormwater went, notingctually went to the far
end and then off into the woods. He said it diossra very small dirt road that
went back to Mr. Holcomb’s farm and there was alsimégation pond on the
left side of that road. Mr. Neal said they hadrbeencerned about that, but after
looking at that they had determined that none ¢ #ite’s stormwater would
reach that irrigation pond. So, he said, the watarld go into the woods so there
was not a worry that it would cross over the preduc

Mr. Holcomb noted that his animals grazed in thed# including sheep, cows
and goats. He said he was a rotational farmahahwhere vegetables were one
day there may be animals there the next eatindeft@vers and providing the
nutrients for the next crop.

Mr. Neal reiterated that the stormwater leaving #ite would meet all State
stormwater requirements.

Mr. Hartkopf asked Mr. Holcomb to point out on theap where he grew his
vegetables. Mr. Holcomb did so. Mr. Hartkopf stid northeast corner of the
property appeared to be a relatively open area.. Hibicomb said that was
correct, and he grew vegetables in that area as w#r. Hartkopf said
immediately to the north, between the project ama@tvwappeared to be a farming
area, there as a long rectangular open area. Micokhb said that was a
vegetable garden area as well, noting that at ptéskad animals on it but in the
spring in would be planted. Mr. Hartkopf said tin Holcomb used all three of
those open areas for plants as well as other #oeide east. Mr. Holcomb said
that was correct. Mr. Hartkopf said the animalsem@ the wooded area. Mr.
Holcomb said the animals rotated from the woodedsto the pastures to eat the
leftovers and to provide nutrients for the soil. e Haid that was known as
intensive rotational grazing.

Mr. Hartkopf suggested breaking the issues down iwb issues, with the first
being the bio-retention of the stormwater. He shat appeared to be down by a
relatively wooded area, which presumably would leared. Mr. Neal said only
the area for the basin would be cleared. Mr. Hgoftksaid the area where the
amphitheater and play space was proposed as wéfleasutdoor events space
would be cleared. He said the bio-retention araa supposed to catch the first
inch of rain.

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



Mr. Holcomb commented that in the last month thexd been several days where
he had gotten an inch of rain in the first houraofain event. So, he said, he
believed the bio-retention system would overrun poltlite his fields.

Mr. Hartkopf asked about the septic spray fieldvir. Hornik suggested that
someone explain exactly how that system would work.

Mr. King swore in Dr. Hal House. Dr. House saidhae spent his 30-year career
focusing on clean water to high levels, and did helieve in disposing of
wastewater which was what septic systems did. &i& such a system would
carry water from a building into a septic tank @hdn by gravity went beneath
the ground. Dr. House said at that point you lzad wastewater that had a higher
potential of pollution of the environment. He s#@ treatment being proposed
here was based on treatment and reuse of so-e@st@water, and applauded the
Krishna Temple for taking that strategy as cleatewaas becoming more and
more critical. Dr. House said they would clean $h250 gallons of water that
would be created within the Temple when there Wk pgkople there to very high
levels. He said the system was designed to redyee water back into the
building to flush toilets, irrigate the landscapad for firefighting purposes.

Dr. House said he had started off at NC State Usitye20 years ago developing
technologies to do this system, and he had beem uisin business the last ten
years. He said he was doing a project now inl#itts that was going to be used
in a new library that was under construction, aadad a system at his office that
had been in place for 12 years that was cleansatgrno a very high level and

recycling it back into the building to flush thal&ts. Dr. House said that was the
first project in the State to treat and reuse water

Dr. House said the treatment technology used usegtative sand filters and

constructed wetlands, and it was a process thatiakén nature where nature

cleansed water as it ran off the land into wetlandes said they had found that to
be very effective, and for this design they hadegtmextremes to make the water
very clean. Dr. House said the State required onky pass through one of the
vegetative sand filters, and they were actuallpddhree passes in addition to the
constructed wetlands. So, he said, they had oe=igded tremendously to meet
their goals.

Mr. Hornik said then the wastewater went throughgand filter and then through
the wetland before it was sprayed. Dr. House nedgpo yes. He said it came out
of the building and went into a septic tank whdre solids were settled out.
Then, he said, the water went into a pump chambeémaas pumped into the top
of the vegetative sand filter. He said it thencptated down into the plant roots
and sand and gravel and was cleansed and wernthmtmnstructed wetland. Dr.
House said it then came back around and did th@hagnd then it went into

another pump chamber and was pumped through anetigetative sand filter

where it again percolated through plant roots amdisand gravel. He said at that

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



point the water was very clean, with nitrogen leval better than drinking water
standards for nitrate and the ammonia was doweds than .1. Dr. House said
that clean water was then irrigated on top of theugd, and the system was
designed for that clean water to enter the groumdas to the way rain water did,
which was spread out in a natural way.

Dr. House said State rules required that the ddsgito be created in such a way
that there was zero runoff, in that all the watad Io go into the ground. He said
if it was too wet to irrigate, then the bio-retemtipond would be used to store the
water until it could be irrigated. Dr. House samdterms of potential health
hazards there were two different forms of disirifeacivhich were ultraviolet light
and chlorination although they really needed omlg smethod. He said for water
going back into the building you had to use chlation, but for irrigation you
only had to use ultraviolet light. He said theydidboth methods, so they would
be killing pathogens.

Dr. House said they did a lot of collaboration wghientists particularly in
regards to pollutants of the future, notably estrogcompounds from
pharmaceuticals and the like. He said through PheBearch out of UNC'’s
Environmental Sciences and Engineering Departmdmd been found that this
system removed those better than the standard watstetreatment plant. Dr.
House said his company was all about clean wageycting, and making good
use of it, and they were very excited about thiggmt. He said he was always
willing to share information with the Town and m@sints about the system, and
would welcome people to come over during constomctso they could
understand how the system worked.

Mr. Remington asked at what stage the water wawuth the ultraviolet light
and chlorination process. Dr. House said the wadel to be fairly clear to use
the ultraviolet light process, so that happeneer dfte filtration processes.

Ms. Lunsford asked how it would work if the watedhto be held in the retention
pond versus spraying it. Dr. House said if it w@s wet to irrigate then the water
would be captured and held in the bio-retentiondoole said the system had to
have an operator to oversee the system, so if s&geshe water could be

diverted into the storage pond. Dr. House saidnaheas time to take the water
out, the irrigation chamber was plumbed into thie 9f the storage pond so that
you could irrigate directly from the storage pontbithe landscape.

Mr. Sain asked if the storage pond was lined witltleing. Dr. House said the
pond was created by doing a very clean excavatioarhove rocks and roots, and
then a layer of 8 ounce Geotech and then a 3 netempolyethylene liner was
installed. He said you then added another lay& @mince Geotech on top of that,
a layer of soil for plantings, and then you fillg to what they called the aesthetic
level with vegetation around the edges just asadhgr pond. Dr. House said the
space above that was the actual storage spacéesgoonhd was always full of

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



10

water and looked nice, and then when you had @ stater it was stored above
the aesthetic level to what was called the stole.

Mr. Sikes said when that process was done over, tvas there a saturation point
of the filtration, or was it in a separate systend &mptied periodically. Dr.
House said as the plants grew, they pumped airtheosand and gravel, and
when the wastewater came in full of organic maketiae air helped to grow the
microbes that decomposed the organic matter. Hessawhen the solids were
coming in they were being decomposed by the migafe¢he plants and turned
into gas, and if the system was designed propesly would have equilibrium
where you would not accumulate materials.

Mr. Hornik asked had any studies been done abeusaii in the infiltration area
so that you knew how much spray could be absorkded. House replied yes,
noting that in order to do this design a soil stgrhad to look at the soil. He
said after looking at the soil the scientist woindert a tube with water into the
soil to see how fast the water moved out. Dr. ldosaid that would tell them
exactly how much water the soil could accept, dsditrigation system would be
designed based on that. He said the soil sciemtistd give them two numbers,
how much water the soil could accept and how mticbuld accept over a given
time period. In other words, he said, how long youwld leave your pump on
before the soil got too wet.

Ms. Lunsford asked once the system was in, wa taey periodic testing done
to test the soil after it was sprayed. Dr. Housiel yes, that the State required
monitoring of both the reuse treatment and thegatron. He added that the
owners of the system were also required to havack-bp generator on site
should it be needed to keep the pumps operational.

Mr. Hornik said then there were monitoring requiesits as well as reporting
requirements by the State. Dr. House replied ged,the permits were issued by
the State. He said typically the monitoring waguieed to be done either
monthly or twice monthly, and the nitrogen, phospisp and organic materials
were measured.

Mr. Hartkopf said after the water went through fitteation was the odor treated,
noting he was aware of other sites that were sgrdlyan carried an aroma of
ammonia. Dr. House said well-designed systemswhbeat installed properly and
were maintained did not carry an odor. He saidsgistem was designed in such a
way that you did not smell raw wastewater on tleatinent side, which was
usually where odors originated. Dr. House said tha multiple filtrations
prevented odors on the treatment side as well.

Mr. Hartkopf said in standard wastewater treatnptants there was an odor that
he did not attribute to ammonia, but did not knohatvthat was. Ms. Lunsford
remarked she believed it was sulfur. Dr. Housd sdiere the most odor was in

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



11

any system was at the beginning of the system thélraw wastewater in a septic
tank, normally when the top was off that tank. d4&l they had plastic risers on
their tanks with gasket lids to keep all odorsdesthe tank, which was the first
step. Dr. House said with most wastewater treatnpéemts the odors were
attributed to too much moisture in that they weyeng to filter a lot of water and

they were not getting enough air into the watere ddid with sand and gravel
filtration beds the water was added in a controliehner, with timed doses of
one to three gallons per square foot per day, aotltie beds were always full of
air. Dr. House said that prevented the odor Mrtlktgf had described.

Mr. Hartkopf asked about the wastewater that wdaddpresent at the southern
end of the site. Dr. House said that was for giraMr. Hartkopf asked where
the septic tanks would be located. Dr. House nedpd they were close to the
building. Mr. Hartkopf asked about the sand ftiba system. Dr. House said
that was treatment, irrigation, and storage, andewmtegrated into the

amphitheater as well as the circle indicated onrfa. He said they were
aesthetic landscape features as well as cleanewélter, adding that inside that
circle was the constructed wetland. He also pdiotgt the location of the five-

day storage pond on the map. Mr. Hartkopf saidhennorth end of the site was
where the water would ultimately be sprayed. Doust said that was correct.
Mr. Hartkopf said what was sprayed would be wdtat tvas post-chlorinated and
UV treated. Dr. House replied the water irrigateculd be UV treated, noting

that the water treated with chlorine would be ussdie the building.

Mr. Hartkopf asked how that water would affect viagdes growing nearby. Dr.

House said the system design was based on reguksétibacks both from the

treatment area and irrigation, and those setbaeks aased on how far potential
pollutants would move. He said the chance of pafits was very, very low, and
once the water was irrigated the chance went doaxen ®wer. Dr. House said if

the system was not installed properly or it wasrow@ated, then pollutants

would be moving. He said vegetation such as tlssgcover and the forest all
cleaned water just as the plants in the sanddjlten once irrigated the cleaning
actually continued even further.

Mr. Sikes asked what exactly was in the irrigatiieds; was it a sunken area or
was it flat. Dr. House said that regulations reegithat it be vegetated, and in
this case it was part pine and part grass andlgdscape plants. He said they
were required to show that the amount of nitrogesh @hosphorus being put into
that area was being removed by the plants, notieg tould not irrigate if the
plants could not use what was being put out.

Mr. Hartkopf said in regards to organisms in tha¥ ltreated water, those
organisms should have been eliminated by that pot. House replied yes,
noting once the water had been cleaned and mageclear, the ultraviolet light

would go through that water and basically kill dracteria or virus present in the
water. Mr. Hartkopf said it was his interpretatitmt this type of system would

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



12

not be allowed if it could in any way damage Mr.l¢tonb’s ability to continue
his business on his property. Dr. House responllagdwas correct, adding that
the animals likely added more bacteria and virugeshe landscape. Mr.
Hartkopf asked if the sheep, goats and other asimeatrete e coli. Dr. House
said there was a lot of conversation about diselas®geen pigs and humans, and
that conversation has evolved in science. He gaid would not want to be
ingesting animal waste in any case. Dr. Housetbaitithere were many different
types and strains of e coli, and some that was @asseciated with animals than
with humans so pigs would have their own type obk He said in terms of the
disinfection and cleaning they were doing they fgatten those issues down to
what was certainly a reasonable risk, noting tloling was a zero risk.

Mr. Hartkopf said that Mr. Holcomb was doing farmion a more natural basis,
and in his lay opinion it would seem that factoype farms and slaughter houses
had poor handling practices of animal products laywroducts. Dr. House said
he understood the concern of contamination, anddneern of irrigating a crop
like lettuce with treated wastewater. He said whas typically done was that the
reuse water that was used for food crops was medib the lettuce as opposed to
on top of it, adding that the State was lookinghatt as a viable option. Dr.
House said once you cleaned the water and it sgghrkl basically could be used
to grow food products. Dr. House said he coulddstly say that everything
possible had been done to manage bacteria, virasdsjutrients, and the system
had been over-designed to make that happen. HetlsaiState approved the
design in its regulations as a reuse system.

Mr. Hornik asked what had been done in the desigmake sure they were not
spraying treated water onto Mr. Holcomb’s properfr. House said whenever
they were close to a property line they used daipear than spray. He said the
spray technology used was low profile spray witragpgheads that popped up out
of the ground and had a very low spray projecti@r. House said as well, the
vegetation around the spray area caught the spchpr@vented it from traveling.

Mr. Hornik asked would the system be spraying ew&y. Dr. House replied it
depended on how much water was used, noting witiaxamum of 450 people at
the Temple during services that water would go theosystem and be cleansed.
Mr. Hornik asked was the system designed so tha¢diple were at the Temple
every day it would still function. Dr. House regdi yes, that the system was
designed as if 450 people would be there every @ay,t was based on 5 gallons
per person. Mr. Hornik asked if that was the stmddhe State recognized. Dr.
House replied yes.

Mr. Sikes asked what the cost was for that systernaapared to a traditional
septic system. Dr. House replied that a traditicegtic disposal system for a
home would cost between $4,000 and $6,000. HetBmdystem was about the
size of six houses, and if they were doing a habsesystem would run between
$20,000 and $35,000. So, he said, there wasrado¢ cost involved. Dr. House

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



13

emphasized that if the Temple elected to disposisoivaste in the traditional
manner, they would be putting 2,250 gallons of namstewater that had only
gone through a septic tank beneath the ground, thedpotential there was
certainly much greater than anything they werengllabout.

Mr. Hartkopf asked for information regarding therstwater runoff. Dr. House

said the bio-retention for suspended solids was gd®d for nitrogen. He said it
was very similar to a constructed wetland in thdteld water and the plants and
the gravel and the microbes cleaned the watersad there.

Mr. Hartkopf asked about the concern regardingraotwle byproducts leeching
from the asphalt, and asked would that damagelmspthat were there to clean
the water. He asked were there some processeldr o inspect that. Dr.
House said that was where the plants were bettéingithe plants, particularly
wetland plants, took up the pollutants and tuckesht away in their tissue so that
they did not get away. He said that was why thay been so excited by the so-
called emerging contaminants like pharmaceuticatgjsehold chemicals, and
estrogen compounds because they were being treately with their system.
Dr. House said they did not yet know why but sastatwere looking at that, but
those contaminants were removed quite nicely.

Mr. King said he wanted to bring up the issue afrflew of the wastewater pond
in relation to the bio-retention area. He aske@tthe chances were of that and
what could happen as a result. Dr. House saigvistewater pond was designed
based on local weather conditions and in conjunctidh how much wastewater
would be created on a daily basis. He said theyldvoot be creating that much
wastewater though they had designed for that.HDuse reiterated that there was
a normal, aesthetic level, and then there was dpadity within the pond for 96
days of bad weather per year, and above that wasgemcy storage which was
called free board that was another two feet. ®osdid, you had the 96 days of
storage for bad weather, plus two feet of free doptus toilet flush that was
recycled.

Mr. Sain said the water in the pond was pretty melelared since it was already
cleansed, so if it were to overrun it would notgmduted water. Dr. House said

that was correct, noting it was very clean wated @&nwas designed not to

overflow. He said they had designed it for a beidg go across it so that people
could enjoy it like an aesthetic pond. Dr. Houagl dish such as Koi would do

well in the pond.

Mr. Hartkopf said in regards to the additional usasthe property, did that hold
any concern or did zoning regulations addressithahy way. Mr. King said that
could be considered accessory uses to a place shigo He said he supposed
the concern could be what the amphitheater woulduded for or the other
outdoor event areas. Mr. Hartkopf said he recdhatl those areas would be used

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



14

for outdoor education. Mr. King said there hadrbaeconcern expressed that the
areas could be rented out for other uses.

Mr. King swore in Albert Hill. Mr. Hill said the qoperty would not be rented to
anyone for any use other than Temple purposes.sditethe amphitheater was
also for educational purposes, services, and outdweents associated with the
Temple. Mr. Hill aid that area would be used prilhgain the summer months

and to accommodate the one or two religious felstitteey held each year. He
said the area was more of a grassed berm-shapduthegter that would not be

used for concerts or the like. He said also it #vea, under what would be the
stage area, would be all the mechanical devicessttzmaged the wastewater
system.

Mr. King said he had received a phone call todaynfrone person who had
expressed concern about whether the amphitheateoattoor event features
should be allowed.

Mr. Sikes said for any outdoor event, the Templelldye required to adhere to
Orange County’s noise ordinance.

Mr. Hornik said for the Board’s consideration, tbeurts were more and more
taking a liberal interpretation of what was an asoey use of a church.

Mr. King stated that the Town’s zoning ordinanceoahad noise requirements
that would address any issues that might arise sdite since this site was in the
ETJ (Extraterritorial Jurisdiction), Orange Coustyioise ordinance would also

apply.

Subal Das, having already been sworn, stated #hdiad been a member of the
Temple and an Orange County resident for 15 yeadsvaanted to address the
issue raised of property values. He said in hisydars he had found that as
young members joined the church, got married arddfamilies, and gradually
grew older they wanted to live closer to the TempMr. Das said he believed
when people wanted to live close to the Temple wowld not have to worry
about property values being affected.

Mr. King swore in Frank Cohen. Mr. Cohen said #sting Temple had

neighbors that were members of the Temple, and tiad/ held some large
festivals during that time. He said he had nevseoved any complaints coming
from the neighbors during those times, noting themd never been any noise
issues. Mr. Cohen said as mentioned, there wendatons in place to monitor

that should the need arise.

Mr. Sikes asked would parking during those largeanés cause any issues. Mr.
Cohen said they would maintain ownership of thestaxj property across the
street, so should the need arise there was plésfyace for overflow parking.

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



15

Mr. King asked if the large events were coordinamgth the Orange County
Sheriff's Office. Mr. Cohen said that had not beeessary in the past, but they
were willing to do that. He said they had so maolunteers during festivals that
they had always managed that in-house.

Mr. King swore in Deborah Malinowski. Ms. Malinolwssaid that parking was

an issue, noting that at times cars pulled offglie of the road and parked on
neighbors’ property. She said at times you cowtget out of your driveway,

but noted the Temple had been good about havingsoepresent to get cars in
and out. But, she said, there had been a time wherperson had been telling
traffic to go and another was telling traffic t@jgt so that was not coordinated.
Ms. Malinowski said when you had that kind of trafthe road needed to be
widened with a turn lane added. She said Orangen@@dad on their plans for

years to widen that road, and believed that shbaldone before this project was
approved so that the rest of the neighbors couldngand out without incident.

Ms. Malinowski said she believed the Temple shdutdable to build what it

wanted, but she did not want her rights taken awdlye process.

Mr. Hartkopf asked how many parking spaces werhatcurrent Temple. Mr.
Cohen said they did not have demarcated parkingesp®ut there was space for
approximately 60 cars. Mr. Hartkopf said his pauats that if that area was used
for overflow parking for the new facility, then thamight address the issue of cars
parking on the side of the road as mentioned byN#ginowski.

Ms. Malinowski said she used her property for agtize and frequently pulled a
trailer as did her neighbors, and her concern veasguhat road and coming up
inclines where sight distances were limited. Shd g there was a turning lane it
would be much safer for everyone. Ms. Malinows#ded that one side of the
road was served by Duke Power and the other byniiatlElectric. She said

since they were on the end of the line on the CR&eer side, they were usually
the last ones to have their power turned back @n éliough those across the
street had power, so that was an issue that stheutdnsidered.

Mr. Cohen said he believed Ms. Malinowski made adgpoint and he would
consult with the planning team to identify waysytimeight address that.

Mr. Hornik asked had NCDOT taken a look at the pJand if so what had been
their comments. Mr. King said that NCDOT had begeren the opportunity to
look at the plans but offered no comments othem thiae need for an
encroachment agreement for the electric utilite lin the NCDOT right-of-way,
and of course a permit for the driveways.

Mr. Neal said they had had discussions with NCD@d had looked at the need
for a turning lane, but NCDOT had not requested #rmal they were given no
indication that a turning lane was necessary. &ld the use of the property
would not be during normal peak driving hours, dhe sight distance for the

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



16

driveways was excellent in that there was adeggj@eing to provide time to see
and be seen when entering and exiting the site. Ndal said there was also
adequate spacing for cars to queue in when waitingark without blocking the
street.

Mr. Remington said the comment about power outagesght up the question of
what would happen to the sewer disposal systeheretwas no power. He asked
was there some kind of back-up generator. Dr. Eaiated that was required,
noting it would automatically flip over to the baak system if the power went
out.

Mr. King swore in Jessica Knight. Ms. Knight salde had recently purchased
property across the street from the site of the Memple. She said she had lived
in the community for 13 years and was pleased #&tke Temple community
growing. Ms. Knight said the Temple had been itisHorough since 1984 and
the members had always done their best to be redgpercommunity members
and to consider how their growth was affecting heShe said they were thrilled
to have the opportunity to build the new facility that they could continue to
grow and share with the community, and because these a part of the
community they wanted to be responsible and do paet.

Mr. Holcomb said Dr. House had made two commerdaswere relevant to him.

He said there would be plumbing that separatedwhier going back into the
Temple used to flush toilets so that it did notigét the sinks. Mr. Holcomb said
that led him to believe you should not drink thetevaand by association that
meant you should not put in on lettuce and eatHe said it was also said that
these types of systems worked well when installedi maintained properly, and
wondered how you would know if the system was ifesfaand maintained

properly. Mr. Holcomb said his entire livelihoodasv being based on the
installation and maintenance of a system that wasgbcrammed into a very
small area that would endanger the lives of pedple went wrong even the

slightest bit.

Mr. Hartkopf said he had understood that the sydtacthto be maintained. Mr.
Hornik said there was testimony that there wergéeStaonitoring and reporting
requirements.

Dr. House said the only way he could see wastevggiting to the lettuce would
be through the air, noting that plants did not ketairuses and bacteria to the
vegetative part of the leaf. He said they coulfiérofat whatever distance Mr.
Holcomb determined, to use drip as opposed to sfargyevent the water from
getting up into the air. Dr. House said he did believe there would be any
significant risk to Mr. Holcomb’s plants using driput they could go that extra
step and make sure the water stayed beneath tke ddymulch when it was
irrigated and that there was adequate vegetatibmele@ the spray field and Mr.
Holcomb’s crops. Dr. House said they could aldoriiate the drip to cleanse it

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



17

even more, noting that chlorination with the UV vedmut the best you could do
to treat any bacteria or virus.

Mr. Holcomb said the best you could do would bedbhave the system that was
spraying potentially toxic water into the air and the grass to leech onto your
neighbor’s property. He said he did not use chir other chemicals because
he grew organic vegetables. Mr. Holcomb said e @aissue with having the
Temple built at that location, noting the Krishndad always been good
neighbors. But, he said, he had a problem withrtineff, the potential problems
with the impervious surfaces, and he had a redleno with human fecal matter
contaminating his vegetables.

Mr. Hartkopf stated Mr. Holcomb and Dr. House magvér to continue their

discussion outside of this forum, noting the Boaxuld deal with the testimony
that had been provided as matters of fact to mhke tecision. He said the
Board appreciated Dr. House’s offer to work with.NHolcomb. Dr. House

stated that the State required that there be noffrfnom the system, and it was
designed in that way. He said he understood timearas, but that everything
possible was done to increase the assurance thalgtem would operate in the
way he had described.

Mr. King swore in Elana Peace. Ms. Peace saidigbeé directly across from the
site, and believed it was a small amount of ared Would have an enormous
amount going on. She said she had no issue watKtishna’'s but was concerned
about the wastewater system. Ms. Peace said rigshead droughts as well as
storms, and her concern was that her well and berehwas close to the road.
She said during the festivals, she usually hadldaoepcones in her driveway to
prevent people from blocking her drive, making fesl trapped. Ms. Peace said
there had also been times that the police had baléed by neighbors because of
the traffic, noting that people tended to park othbsides of the road making that
narrow road even narrower. She said adding toptloblem was the many
tractors and horse trailers using the road. Mac@eaaid her biggest concern was
how close she was to the road and what odors slgebmaubjected to; that the
road needed to be widened, and how the new faeildyld affect her property
value.

Ms. Peace said she would like to be informed wihenféstivals were planned so
that she could prepare her animals, noting thegig@rno get upset. She said if
she knew when the festivals were planned she clmalde her home for the

evening, noting that even though the festivals wereterribly loud, that people

sometimes walked through her yard, and she woulderabe away for the

evening and not exposed to that.

Mr. King swore in Lisa Kubish. Ms. Kubish said yhéad just moved to
Hillsborough this past year and had begun “freagjaiarming on the existing
Temple grounds, noting that was different from aigdarming in that they used

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



MOTION:

VOTE:

18

no animal products or byproducts typically useaiganic farming. She said in
addition to the vegetables grown they also grewvdis and intended to plant %2
acre of flowers in the coming year. She said wihernew Temple was built they
would continue that model across the street, ansl weping to have plenty of
irrigation for the flowers. Ms. Kubish said thegged that the larger tract would
bring people to the area to visit a completely greszo-friendly botanical garden
that people would appreciate. She said based @t ste knew about organic
farming she had no concerns about the water treatesystem, noting that they
would be nourishing the soil through different nogth. Ms. Kubish said she was
not fearful of the system affecting that, notingttthey used drip irrigation on the
current site which reduced the amount of water liaat to be used and in turn not
creating runoff. She said she agreed that thegsexp system would not produce
any runoff, noting they would be using that samstey to irrigate their
vegetables and flower gardens.

Jeff Swicegood, having already been sworn, spoleipport of the Temple. He
said that the Temple had been in its current looasince 1985 and had good
relationships with local businesses. Mr. Swicegsail the Temple served 43
families in Hillsborough, 89 in Chapel Hill and @aoro, 10 in Mebane, 125 in
Durham, 15 in Burlington, 90 in Greensboro, and #v&ary. He said using 4
persons per family, the current Temple served &84qgms in Orange County and
an additional 2,020 within a 35 mile radius.

Mr. Hill explained that the Temple was not like average church that everyone
came to on Sundays. He said many of the famile@eecseveral times a year
only, so the figures addressed in regards to pgréimd sewage and septic was
based on an integer that was above what they readiseahe last 24+ years that
the Temple had been at its current location. Mit.44did he did not want to leave

the impression that that many people would be effégmple all at one time. He

said in regards to Mr. Holcomb’s issues, he saidirerstood the concern about
his livelihood and the affect on his property, delieved it was important that

the Board consider that. Mr. Hill said at the samee, it was important that the

Board consider, once all the science and regulatisare taken into account,

whether those concerns were still reasonable.

Mr. Sain moved to close the hearing on Case #BA-02-2010nd@ional Use-2
Permit request from Krishna Temple of NC, Inc., é&lbert Hill. Mr. Sikes
seconded.

Unanimous.

Discussion:

Mr. Sain said it appeared to him that the filtratigystem, the way it had been
explained, was much safer than having animals enlghd because there were
less contaminants. He said the system had safatyres built in that did a better
job than what the State required.

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



19

Mr. Hornik stated that one of the things the Boaat to consider was the
evidence presented. He said the standard wasitistasitial competent evidence
in the record, so they had to consider the qualitthe testimony about facts and
opinions.

Mr. Remington said he agreed with Mr. Sain, notimgt he took Mr. Holcomb’s
concerns extremely seriously and the Board wardendke sure that there was
no threat to the public health and safety. He sathing was risk free, but
believed the competent testimony provided indicdtext the proposed system
came as close as anything could. Mr. Remingtod bai saw nothing in the
evidence that indicated a particular kind of rigiséd on the design of the system.

Ms. Lunsford agreed, noting the State regulatech systems and they were
monitored.

Mr. Sain agreed, noting that if during the monigrisomething was found to be
not working properly then the Temple would be regdito have it addressed.

Mr. Hornik said if he understood Dr. House’s testity, the filtration area and the
irrigation system was designed in such a way thetet would not be any airborne
water traveling to anyone else’s property. He si&idhe Board was still
concerned about that, they could impose a condttian drip irrigation only be
used. Mr. Hornik said he was not advising thatBbard require that, only that it
was a condition that could be required if the Bdeftit necessary.

Mr. Hartkopf asked could such a condition be wordedthat the applicant
addressed it in the way they saw fit, in that treaf8l would not say that drip
irrigation had to be used entirely but that theliaapt was responsible for not
spraying beyond their property. Mr. Hornik saictttstate regulations already
required that, according to Dr. House.

Mr. Sain said with the low pop-up heads that wdoddused to spray he did not
see how the water could get airborne.

Mr. Hartkopf asked if the pop-up heads emitted dtitnde stream as opposed to
a spray. He said he believed it was actually anameer to call it a spray system
because it was not a mist spray, it was a multitofdstreams that came out in
several directions. Dr. House said that was exatght, noting you had to

choose the hardware that produced droplets rathaerd mist. Mr. Hartkopf said
then Mr. Holcomb’s property was protected by law.

Mr. Sikes asked what the standard setback was bative property lines. Mr.
King responded there was a 50-foot setback fordmgk, but not a buffer
requirement for the property lines per the Towrguations. However, he said,
there was in the State regulations. Mr. Sikes Baith looking at the slope of the

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



20

land on the map, the slope of the northwesternecoof the Temple property
actually pushed runoff back onto the property.

Mr. Remington said it also appeared that the bubbbeind the irrigation fields
stopped 40 to 50 feet from the east property liHe. said in looking at the outlet
to the bio-retention basin, assuming that was wietow would go, it was

definitely below the south end of that field savibuld be going into the wooded
area rather than the cultivated area. Mr. Remmgtad that would reduce the
concerns about what might come off the parkingalud into the storm drainage
system.

Mr. Hartkopf said recourse for any damages to cropdivestock would be
available to Mr. Holcomb through the courts. Morhik said he would think so.

Mr. Hartkopf said in regards to the road, he uned that the Temple would not
increase traffic during peak hours. He said heesstdod the concerns about the
road perhaps needing turn lanes or widening, buD®@T had not brought that
issue up. Mr. King said during the Technical Revi€ommittee meeting that
was held with review agencies, a NCDOT represemdiad indicated only that
an encroachment agreement would be needed for l¢htrie line within the
NCDOT right-of-way, as well as the need for drivgvpeermits.

Mr. Hartkopf asked about parking on the side otaeSroad. Mr. King said that
was a matter for the Sheriff or the State Highwatrd?.

Mr. Sain said he believed that issue would curelfitbased on the number of
parking spaces at the new Temple and the facthleaturrent Temple site would
be used for overflow parking for the new Temple.

Mr. Hartkopf said the church leadership had alsaenaote of that and believed
they would address it in the future.

Mr. Remington asked how the proposal fit in witle tBtrategic Growth Plan and
the Land Use Plan, as far as a place of worshipatresidential/agricultural area.
He said he did not see that as something thatalpieould not happen, noting
the number of rural churches. Mr. Remington shat tvould minimize the idea
of complete segregation of uses, and to his wathioking this was something
that did fit in to the overall zoning classificatio

Mr. Sikes said the fact that the existing Temples ilzere would speak to that.
Mr. Hornik said something to keep in mind was tti&t Zoning Ordinance said if
the applicant satisfied all the specifications g Zoning Ordinance for the use,
then they were entitled to the Conditional Use Rermle said unless there was
competent evidence in the record to support ontheffour Findings of Fact

against the CUP, and if the applicant had dematestrnat they satisfied all the

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



21

specific requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, them process indicated that
they would receive the CUP.

Mr. Remington said until recently, he would haveeipreted Finding D in terms
of the Findings of Facts to say that they had nal fihat the use was consistent
with the Comprehensive Plan, but apparently therCafuAppeals had indicated
that that interpretation was not correct. He saien given that, he would be hard
pressed to say that you could not have places o§him in a rural/residential
area. Mr. Hornik said the ordinance already shat {ou could as long as you
satisfied the specifications.

Mr. Hartkopf suggested that they work through therksheet provided by Mr.
King. There was no objection from the Board.

Mr. Hartkopf read each of the requirements notedhenworksheet, asking the
Board for any comments of objections. The Boarged that the application met
each of the requirements as noted on the worksheet.

Regarding the Findings of Fact, the Board afterief loliscussion agreed that the
proposed project met each of the findings.

Mr. King asked Mr. Hill if had he received his em@garding the ten conditions
that were recommended to be imposed. He askedMthatlill look those over

and determine if he was in agreement with thoselitons. Mr. Hill responded

he had no issues with the proposed conditions.

MOTION: Mr. Remington moved to approve Case #BA-02-2010 - Conditional -PJse
Permit request from Krishna Temple of NC, Inc., &bert Hill, based on the
fact that the application satisfied Articles 4.914 and 4.3 of the Zoning
Ordinance, subject to the following conditions:

a. Construction PlansFinal, detailed construction plans includingsigrading,
stormwater control, erosion control, landscapinghting, and architectural
elevations, shall be submitted to the Zoning Offifme review and approval
prior to the issuance of a Zoning Compliance Perfie plans shall conform
in all respects to the plans approved as part ®fGbnditional Use-2 Permit
application, including any authorized changes ayguioby the Board at the
hearing, and demonstrate compliance with all apple approval conditions
and standards of the Zoning Ordinance.

b. Stormwater Control Plan The applicant shall submit a Stormwater Control
Plan for review and approval by the Erosion Conbalision of the Orange
County Planning and Inspections Department. Writesidence of plan
approval shall be submitted to the Zoning Officaoipto the issuance of the
Zoning Compliance Permit.

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



22

. Stormwater Best Management Practice (BMP) Construcertification A

certification letter signed and sealed by the desmengineer stating that the
on-site stormwater control BMPs, as constructed, famction properly shall
be submitted to the Zoning Officer prior to theumsce of a Certificate of
Occupancy for the project.

. Stormwater BMP Operation and Maintenance PlaA Stormwater BMP
Operation and Maintenance Plan prepared by theguiegi engineer and
executed by the property owner shall be recorddl tie Orange County
Register of Deeds Office. The plan shall include thwner’'s financial
responsibility and include the maintenance schediitbe facilities to ensure
that it continues to function as originally intedde Evidence of the
recordation of the Operation and Maintenance Phatl e provided to the
Zoning Officer prior to the issuance of a Certifeeaof Occupancy for the
project.

. Stormwater As-built Plan An “as-built” plan for all stormwater management
facilities shall be submitted to the Zoning Officater final construction is
completed and before a Certificate of Occupancgsiged for the project.

As-built Survey An as-built survey prepared by a professionadl laurveyor
showing all above ground structures including, ot limited to, buildings,
eave overhangs, awnings, HVAC units, walls, fencipgrking lot and
driveways, freestanding signs, dumpster compoundszestanding
identification signs, stormwater control facilitiesd freestanding light poles
shall be submitted to the Zoning Officer prior be tissuance of a Certificate
of Occupancy for the project.

. Building Height Verification The applicant shall provide a written and sealed
certification, prepared by a professional land ewor, verifying that the
tallest point of the temple structure is 65 feeheight or less on all sides of
the building. The height of the building shall beeasured from the mean
elevation of the finished grade of the building ite highest point. This
certification must be received prior to the isswaraf a Certificate of
occupancy for the project.

. Utilities Encroachment AgreementA fully executed North Carolina
Department of Transportation (NCDOT) Encroachmegre&ment for the
electric line to be installed in the right-of-wafy@immocks Mill Road will be
provided to the Zoning Officer prior to the issuancf a Certificate of
Occupancy for the project.

Driveway Permits Approved NCDOT Driveway Permits shall be subeultt
prior to the issuance of a Zoning Compliance Pefonithe project.

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



VOTE:

ITEM #& 6:

23

]. Sidewalk EasementA public pedestrian/sidewalk easement grantiocess
for maintenance by the Town of Hillsborough for thequired sidewalk
located along Dimmocks Mill Road and on the propestbject to the
Conditional Use-2 Permit, prepared in a format ptaale to the Town of
Hillsborough Town Attorney, shall be recorded ie thrange County Register
of Deeds Office prior to the issuance of a Ceidicof Occupancy for the
project.

Mr. Sain seconded.
Unanimous.

Case #BA-01-2010 — Conditional Use-2 Permit regst from Summit
Consulting c/o Chad Abbott on behalf of MeadowlandsAssociates for the
construction of 4 buildings totaling 59,500 squaréeet in gross floor area for
use as flexible office, warehouse and storage spades3 off-street parking
spaces are to be provided. The property is locateat the end of Executive
Court (Orange County Tax Map Reference #4.40.A.11and is zoned HIC
(High Intensity Commercial).

Mr. Hartkopf noted that the public hearing wad siden on this matter. Mr. King
reiterated that the purpose of the Conditional Bsemit was to allow for the
construction of 4 buildings totaling 59,500 squiaet in gross floor area for use
as flexible office, warehouse and storage space. s&id this project would be
called Tryon Business Center II, and 133 off-stigatking spaces were being
proposed. Mr. King said the property was zonedhHigensity Commercial, and
was just over 5 acres located at the end of Exee@ourt. He said to the east of
the site was a residential subdivision and to toethmvest and south were
commercial/industrial uses.

Mr. King stated that staff found the plans to begeneral compliance with the
Ordinance; however, staff had identified severats@nding questions that
needed to be answered. He said first, there wadeao indication provided as to
what landscaping would be used for screening arfiging in the Type D land
use buffer required along the east side of thegatgp Mr. King said secondly,
no employment information was provided so calcatatihe required off-street
parking was difficult to do, adding that the minimparking requirements for
office use were one space per employee, plus oaeesper 300 square feet of
gross floor area. Mr. King said for storage andeliausing it was one space per
employee and two customer spaces. He said byalgslations this application
would require 103 spaces although that provided lthee minimum; the
application was proposing 133 spaces.

Mr. King swore in Chad Abbott of Summit Consultingdr. Abbott stated that
plans had been submitted to all appropriate agsraiie no negative comments
had been received. He said to speak to the issigesd by Mr. King, the lights
typically used were at a 25-foot mounting heightt because the buildings were
3 feet shorter the mounting height would be dropjed2 feet. Mr. Abbott said

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



24

the landscaping on a tree-by-tree basis was notvrshon the proposed
landscaping plan along with the 50-foot buffer. $#ed there were existing trees
in the area, and it was the applicant’s intentutbyfcomply with the Type D
buffer. Mr. Abbott said they would be disturbingr{s of the buffer to cut down
the slopes, but they would replant those areagesssary to comply with the 50-
foot land use buffer being opaque to a height déed and visual obstructions
from there up to 20 feet.

Mr. Abbott said that Mr. King's staff report hade@eenced that the applicant had
requested that on the southeastern end there slapathat would be cut back to
make room for the docks at the back of that onédimg along the southern
property line, noting that 7-foot slope would tagkwn and turn into a field
slope. He said along the field slope section thewld replant to fully comply
with the Ordinance. Mr. Abbott said they were resfing that the cut slope count
towards some of the opaque screening required dhatgrea. He said the report
said that if you used a cut slope it should be & ftall, but the ordinance
required you to have an opaque screen up to six fde Abbott said if they had
a cut slope that was 7 feet then you could notls@eigh it, so that would comply
with the opaque requirement of 6 feet. He said tbé course, the existing
vegetation beyond that slope would provide the aligbstructions from 6 to 20
feet, and if it did not then they would comply witte ordinance. Mr. Abbott said
it was their intent to comply, but until they beg#me site disturbance and
identified which trees would remain, it was difficio show on a tree-by-tree
basis how many would remain. But, he said, thenartte was clear as to how
many trees per linear foot were required and thgrede of opaqueness it must
comply with, so they fully intended to do that. .Msbbott said even though it
was not shown on the plans, they did say in thairative submitted with the
application that a 50-foot Type D buffer would Haged along the east side of
the property.

Mr. King said for the Board’s information, the Type land use buffer was a
Subdivision Ordinance requirement and was suppdselie there when the
subdivision was approved. He said that the opaguiton of that Type D buffer

was a planted buffer that was measured from thengrdeight to at least 20 feet,
with a semi-opaque or intermittent visual obstructirom the opaque portion to a
height of at least 30 feet.

Mr. Remington said then that would exceed the Zgrdndinance buffer in this
case. Mr. King said the Zoning Ordinance said thmieg, and the Subdivision
Ordinance said another. Mr. Abbott said based enKvhg's comments in the
staff report, it talked about the Type 1 buffer ingvto have the opaqueness of 6
feet. Mr. King said the Zoning Ordinance requiee@lype 1 buffer that required a
6 foot screen with a semi-opaque screen of at Btagtet at maturity.

Mr. Sikes asked was that only for that eastern. side. King replied yes, noting
that a portion of the cut slope in the southeashteroMr. Abbott had described

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



25

would be included in that requirement. He said dbestion would be whether
the Type 1 screening or the Type D screening wagdly, noting that the

existing vegetation adhered to the Type D bufferernvithe subdivision was

approved. Mr. King said now they had a screenagguirement in the Zoning

Ordinance that was different from that, noting ihswless stringent as far as
height. He said it was his opinion that the Typeddeening should apply.

Mr. Hornik said it would seem that they would waotmaintain, as closely as
possible, the same type of buffer that was preseiare construction.

Mr. Abbott said they would maintain that as muchpassible, but with the
topography of the site shifting so much, in thaytihad a cut slope on one side
and a field slope on the other, it was a mattewxlwdt they would replant to. Mr.
King said it would be a matter of changing the sgeof what was planted, in
that on one side it should reach a height of 20 deenaturity rather than 6 feet,
and on the other side 30 feet at maturity versue@0 Plus, he said, if there was
existing vegetation that could be retained theh¢bald add to that.

Mr. King asked when the construction drawings weoee, would they have a
better idea of what would be needed. Mr. Abboid yas, that they would do a
tree survey showing the existing tree types andssiadding that once he did
those drawings and did more detailed storm draintigey may find they would
have to bump the slope out even more which wouldmremoval of additional
trees. Mr. King stated that was something thdt stauld work with the applicant
on.

Mr. Remington said something similar was done wdtlprevious application,
adding an inspection would be done in the wint&radll the leaves were off the
trees to see what if anything would need to be @ddér. King said that could be
done here, that based on the landscaping planathatspection could be done
once the landscaping was in to determine if theirements had been met and if
not what needed to be done. He said if there wgsdsagreement at that point
then the applicant could come back to the Boardsatd its case. Mr. Abbott
said he believed that would be a better approach.

Mr. Remington said frankly he would like to seenasch existing vegetation as
possible remain. Mr. King asked if the Board wadigating it wanted to add that
condition to those already recommended in the stgibrt.

Mr. Remington said he believed it was a matterayfirgy that it needed to meet
the Type D buffer requirements after constructiwhich would be evaluated by
staff. Mr. King said there would be a final landge inspection, and if the
applicant would locate trees that fell within theidglines for Type D and then
plant where needed, he believed they would thenpbomHe said he believed

Mr. Remington was indicating he wanted as muchtiexjssegetation to remain

as possible. Mr. Remington said yes, he did wanhach as possible to remain,

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



26

but he understood that once the construction digavivere completed some
things might change.

Mr. Abbott said the other issue brought up in ttedfgeport was the number of
parking spaces needed for the development, which fiexible office and
warehouse space. He said the problem was thatmgmuhave space that was
leased to a tenant who did not want that much vearsd or that much office
space, so that would change the calculation forntin@ber of spaces required.
Mr. Abbott said they had provided 133 to cover swcmtingencies and had
designed the site so that the parking was intéoidhe site while providing rather
large landscaped islands for stormwater treatméfe. said 133 spaces was the
most efficient, maximum parking they could achievesite while still complying
with stormwater rules and others, noting that trtuaking radii had taken a lot
space.

Mr. Hornik asked what would happen if they had atore of tenants that
required 165 spaces, and would they then not igsuZoning Compliance Permit
because they had only 133 spaces. He said 138ssjpanited what could be done
there, in that they may be forced to pass up anpiatdenant because there was
inadequate parking. Mr. Hornik said if the apphitavas satisfied with 133, then
that was what they would have to work with regagslef the tenant mix.

Mr. Hartkopf noted that flex space was notorioudifficult to predict, so the
applicant was assuming a certain amount of risle asked about the strip that
was between building A and the parking area. Mibétt said there was a minute
point where the radius and the sidewalk came tegethperhaps a foot or two,
noting that when you came in the entrance and uwerthe right where the
sidewalk curved around the corner of the buildihgre was one small area where
they could not provide the required 3-foot strimgly because of the turning
radius provided for tractor trailers. He said tiwagl provided a 3-foot strip all the
way up to that corner and one coming to the coret,where they met it was
slightly narrower. Mr. Abbott said instead of charg the whole roadway they
could radius the edge of the sidewalk.

Mr. King said the question for the Board to consias if the spirit and intent of
that provision in the ordinance was being met.

Mr. Abbott said the 3-foot strip along the backtbé building had no plants
showing on the plans, but that was an error. Hekth@re would be plantings in
that strip. Mr. Abbott said he believed that cagkall of the outstanding issues.
Mr. King stated that the HVAC units would be roobumted and were similar to
others in the Meadowlands development.

Mr. Remington asked were there sidewalks requinecErecutive Court. Mr.
King stated that based on the Orange Charter ScBU& from several months
ago it was determined that that street was a cgageand not considered a sub-

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



MOTION:

VOTE:

27

collector or greater. He said he would assume ghate logic would come into
play in this case, so no sidewalk would be required

Jessica Carmichael, having been sworn, statedtiie@t property was at the
bottom of the hill where the stream ran along ttigeeof their property. She said
they had a few concerns, the first of which wagprty value. Ms. Carmichael
said they believed the buffer might help that, tuanted a better explanation
regarding runoff. She said the site plan was moy detailed as to where their
property was located in relation to the site anelytheeded more information
about how stormwater would flow from the proposéd and whether it would

affect their property.

Mr. King stated that a surface water analysis heghlconducted on the drainage
feature that Ms. Carmichael had referred to backR(o4 that showed where the
water feature ended.

Mr. Abbott, using a map, pointed out to Ms. Carmaehhow the stormwater from
the proposed site would flow into a draw which wbudke the water to the
Meadowlands pond. So, he said, that stormwaterdvoat run to the stream
bordering the Carmichael property or affect theaperty in any way. After some
discussion, it was noted that the Carmichaels’ @riypdid not immediately adjoin
the subject property. They were within 500 feethef property, though.

Mr. Sikes moved to close the hearing on Case #BA-01-2010nd@ional Use-2
Permit request from Summit Consulting c/o Chad Abbon behalf of
Meadowlands Associateddr. Sain seconded.

Unanimous.

Discussion:

Mr. Remington said he believed they could be sonawlexible about little
details, such as that one corner where the strgpnvaarow, but at the same time
he did not think that someone should be alloweshiteeze every last bit of space
out of something at the cost of not complying wilie ordinance. He said given
that it was feasible to have a slightly tighterning radius to provide that, his
inclination would be that the strip should be 3 fe&le at that corner.

Mr. Hartkopf said he did not disagree with that.

Mr. Sikes said he did not believe it was that Higuo exemption. He asked how
big of a difference would it make to the trucks @ognin. Mr. Abbott said not a
huge difference, but believed the intent of tharadce was so that the three-foot
strip could be used for landscaping and they irgdnicb landscape all the way
around, but it just was not 3 feet at that paréiclection. He said it was just the
very corner, and they could radius the sidewakdiwe the issue.

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



28

Mr. King said that the ordinance did not specifytba site how wide the sidewalk
had to be, and wondered if there could be somebilgy in the width of the
sidewalk in that location. Mr. Abbott said thapigally they showed sidewalks at
5 feet wide, but the ADA allowed the sidewalk to déeet in width. Mr. King
said then perhaps narrowing the sidewalk in thatamea would help. Mr. Abbott
said that was a possibility, but they could alsuklat realigning the drive as well.

Mr. Hartkopf said in regards to the buffer, he &e#id they were in agreement
that the Type D would be what was required. TharB@agreed by consensus.

Mr. Remington said he did not know that speciagleage would be needed in the
conditions, noting his point was to suggest thatab-built needed to satisfy it and
if that required some plantings anywhere that ttistiag trees did not take care
of it that they be required. He said he believedient without saying that the
existing vegetation would help meet the requiremsathe did not know if that
needed to be a part of a condition of approval.

MOTION: Mr. Remington moved to approve Case #BA-01-2010 - Conditional -PJse
Permit request from Summit Consulting c/o Chad Abbon behalf of
Meadowlands Associates based on the fact thatgpkcation satisfied Articles
4.9, 4.10, and 4.3 of the Zoning Ordinance, sulifpthe condition that the 3-foot
landscape strip around the buildings be requiredutthout as well as the
following conditions:

a. Construction PlansFinal, detailed construction plans includingsigrading,
stormwater control, erosion control, landscapinghting, and architectural
elevations shall be submitted to the Zoning Offifmar review and approval
prior to the issuance of a Zoning Compliance Perfiie plans shall conform
in all respects to the plans approved as part @fGbnditional Use-2 Permit
application, including any authorized changes ayguioby the Board at the
hearing, and demonstrate compliance with all apple approval conditions
and standards of the Zoning Ordinance.

b. Stormwater Control Plan:The applicant shall submit a Stormwater Control
Plan for review and approval by the Erosion Conbalision of the Orange
County Planning and Inspections Department. Writesidence of plan
approval shall be submitted to the Zoning Officaoipto the issuance of the
Zoning Compliance Permit.

c. Stormwater Best Management Practice (BMP) ConstmucEertification: A
certification letter signed and sealed by the desmengineer stating that the
on-site stormwater control BMPs, as constructed, famction properly shall
be submitted to the Zoning Officer prior to theumsce of a Certificate of
Occupancy for the project.

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



VOTE:

ITEM #7:

29

d. Stormwater BMP Operation and Maintenance PlaA: Stormwater BMP
Operation and Maintenance Plan prepared by theguiegi engineer and
executed by the property owner shall be recorddll tie Orange County
Register of Deeds Office. The plan shall include thwner’'s financial
responsibility and include the maintenance schediitbe facilities to ensure
that it continues to function as originally intedde Evidence of the
recordation of the Operation and Maintenance Phatl e provided to the
Zoning Officer prior to the issuance of a Certifeeaof Occupancy for the
project.

e. Stormwater As-built Plan:/An “as-built” plan for all stormwater management
facilities shall be submitted to the Zoning Officater final construction is
completed and before a Certificate of Occupandgsiged for the project.

f. As-built Site Survey: An as-built survey prepared by a professionatllan
surveyor showing all above ground structures indgdbut not limited to,
buildings, eave overhangs, awnings, HVAC unitscileg, parking lot and
driveways, freestanding signs, dumpster compoundggestanding
identification signs, stormwater control facilitiesd freestanding light poles
shall be submitted to the Zoning Officer prior be tissuance of a Certificate
of Occupancy for the project.

Mr. Sikes seconded.
Unanimous.

Committee and Staff reports.

Planning Board:

Mr. Remington said the Planning Board had discussetisent the amendments
to the Parks and Recreation Master Plan to pulgarihg, which was scheduled
for next Thursday. He said they had also discussddthance rewrites. Mr.
Hornik stated that the first draft of the new Uedi Development Ordinance
which combined the Subdivision and Zoning Ordinana®uld be available on
Friday, and would be discussed by the Town Board #ns Board at an
upcoming meeting.

Elizabeth Brady Road:

Mr. King stated that the Durham-Chapel Hill-CartboMPO (Metropolitan
Transportation Organization) had this morning vatednimously to recommend
the no-build option for the Elizabeth Brady Roadeasion. He said that would
now go to NCDOT for consideration.

Mr. Sikes asked how much weight that would carrshwilCDOT. Mr. King
responded it was hard to tell, noting that Orangerr@y, the Town Board, and
now the MPO had all recommended the no-build optiod to explore other
alternatives in order to retain the funding thad baen earmarked and apply it to

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



ITEM 7A:

MOTION:

VOTE:

30

some other projects already in the TIP (Transporiaklmprovement Plan) that
might help alleviate traffic issues on Churton 8treHe said examples of other
projects would be the realignment at Eno MountadadRand Mayo Street, doing
the South Churton Street improvements from 1-4@h® Eno River bridge, and
the Orange Grove Road connector over to US 70A Edsth would open up the
Town-owned property for the proposed rail statiddr. King said there was a
meeting scheduled for next week to look at a di@ fior the Town-owned tract
with a ralil station, possibly a performing arts teenpolice and fire station, and
incorporating the HYAA (Hillsborough Youth Athletidssociation) ball fields.
He said they hoped to have at that meeting a diagrigh a general transportation
network for the Collins tract to the south and behihe Daniel Boone shopping
area.

Ms. Lunsford asked about the current Board of Amijient vacancy. Mr. King

said the Planning Director had been informed, agldivat Brad Curelop’s term
expired in February and he had indicated that heldvoot seek reappointment,
so that would be two vacancies. He said both wefleown seats, with one being
an alternate.

Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigain for Webb Grove and the Nannie
Richmond Appeal.

Mr. Sikes moved to enter into a Closed Session to discusdipgitigation.
Mr. Sain seconded.
Unanimous.

Other:

Mr. King stated that the Fairview Child Care prajbad run into a minor issue.
He said that Lawndale Avenue had a 30-foot-widhtraf-way up to a point and
at that point it became a 50-foot-wide right-of-wawpting that that was the same
area where there was an unopened right-of-waythiegt needed to have closed.
Mr. King said that bumped the front setback furthack, which would require
them to move the building back. He said in doihgttthe orientation of the
building would have to change causing the play ggent to have to be moved at
a considerable expense. Mr. King said that appliegas now asking if they
could turn the building with the front of the build facing Lawndale Avenue and
not move the play equipment. He said staff betieiwevas something that they
could handle, but he had talked with the Planningedor who had suggested
bringing it to the Board to see if they believed@uld be a change the size, form,
or ornamentation of the building that would cause applicant to have to come
back to the Board.

Mr. Hartkopf said the only change he saw that walslde that would be the need
for a walkway to get to the front of the buildinyir. King said he had spoken to
the contractor today who had indicated that theyld/@address that by having an
entry to the porch with doors entering from anottieection so that when you

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



31

entered you would step up on the porch and crosstovthe door. He said to get
the three-foot separation between the parking spadehe building may mean a
shift of about a foot. Mr. King asked the Boardhty believed the applicant
needed to come back before the Board to make thbaages, noting staff
believed it could be handled at the staff level.

Mr. Remington said the question was coming up beedhbe right-of-way was
different from what they thought it was. Mr. Kisgid that was correct, that for
whatever reason the right-of-way changed from 2@ fe 50 feet at a particular
point.

Mr. Sikes asked if making those changes would kbepouilding in compliance
with setback requirements. Mr. King said that wasect, noting that making the
change would require the applicant to move thendige ditch slightly, in that
instead of going straight it would have to veer affone point into another
direction.

After a brief discussion, the Board agreed by cossg that the applicant would
not have to come back before the Board to makehhages as described by Mr.
King, and that staff would oversee the changes.

Mr. King said another issue was the Mt. Bright Caang noting they had
received approval from the Historic District Comsig who had required them
to provide two retaining walls. He said the orairplan was to have one
retaining wall and the HDC, in order to protecesghad required that there be a
step-down retaining wall that was 4-feet high, abgvade, then flatten out, and
then drop down three feet. Mr. King said that dad really change anything, but
wanted the Board to be aware of that. He said bifeved that was not a
significant enough change to merit having to gokithcough BOA review.

After some discussion, the Board agreed.

Mr. King said lastly, there was a training oppoitynnoting that the Centralina
Council of Governments was going to hold a traingggsion on quasi-judicial
practices and NC planning law in Greensboro on lalyr23. He said it would
be from 1:30 to 5 p.m. at the Greensboro Colisepectal Events Center. Mr.
King said the cost was $50 per person, and thenPigrDirector had indicated
that the Town would either pay the fee in advance/auld reimburse any Board
members who chose to attend.

Mr. King stated another option would be to have Mornik provide a training
session at some point. Or, he said, they couldadio.

After some discussion, the Board agreed to email Wing if they decided to
attend the February 23 session.

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



32

ITEM #8:  Adjourn.

Mr. Sikes moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:45 p.nMr. Remington
seconded. The motion was adopted unanimously.

Approved:

Tom King, AICP, CZO
Senior Planner
Secretary to the Board

Board of Adjustment
January 13, 2010



